
 

 

 
MINUTES OF A STUDY SESSION OF THE PRINCETON CITY COUNCIL HELD ON 

OCTOBER 3, 2013, 4:30 P.M. IN THE CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
************************************************************************************************************* 
Mayor Paul Whitcomb called the meeting to order.  Council members present were Thom Walk-
er, Dick Dobson, Jules Zimmer and Victoria Hallin. Staff present was Administrator Mark 
Karnowski, Finance Director Steve Jackson, Community Development Director Carie Fuhrman, 
Public Works Director Bob Gerold, Police Chief Brian Payne, Police Sergeant Joseph Backlund, 
Police Investigator Todd Frederick, Engineer Mike Nielson and City Clerk Shawna Jenkins. Ab-
sent was Liquor Store Manager Nancy Campbell 
 
Princeton youth Hockey 5k race route approval request 
 

Karnowski reported that the Princeton Youth Hockey Association is requesting a race route 
be approved for their 5k on October 12th. The route has been reviewed and approved by Po-
lice Chief Payne. There will be some reserve officers on duty that day to help assist if need-
ed.  
 

WALKER MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE 5K RACE ROUTE AS SUBMITTED. DOBSON SE-
CONDED THE MOTION. THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

 
 

Rum River Resource and Recreational Board Presentation – Heidi Chiodo 
 

Chiodo reported that they are working on a trail that will run thru Greenbush Township, Prince-
ton Township and the City of Princeton. The grants they are looking at will require them to come 
up with a portion of the project, which they estimate as $93,000. People interested in donating 
to the project, can fill out a pledge form and the funds will not be collected until a grant was re-
ceived. Donations will also be tax deductable. Currently they are looking at applying for the 
Legacy Grant, but there may be others as well.  
 
Walker asked what their changes are that they will receive the grant if they receive the pledge 
foal. Chiodo replied that grants are very competitive, but they are usually in favor of projects that 
have a lot of partners, pledges, etc.  

 
 

Update on Tree Survey – Gina Hugo 
 

Gina Hugo reported that they have finally treated the tree Inventory. They had 9 volunteers 
that spent 240 hours on the project.  
 
They estimate there are approximately 12,481 trees in the city limits. Of those the break-
down was as follows: 

 Maple   15.0% 
 Spruce   14.2% 
 Ash   12.1% (1/2 of what they expected) 
 Red Pine  11.5% 
 White Oak    6.6% 
 Apple     6.5% 
 Northern Red Oak   3.9% 
 Box elder    3.9% 
 Oak     3.7% 
 Eastern White Pine   3.0% 
 Other species  19.6% 



 

 

Princeton City Council Minutes  
October 3, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
Hugo spoke about the gravel beds they are using to enhance the root systems on bare root 
trees that will be planted in the fall. She added that they are growing Dutch elm resistant trees. 
Gerold he is going to put together a gravel bed for Public Works.  
 
Whitcomb asked if there was something that the trees can be treated with to prevent the spread 
of the disease. Hugo replied that the trees can be treated with an insecticide that will kill any 
beetles feasting on the foliage and any larvae that is under the bark.  
 
 
2014 Budget Discussion – Capital Improvement Plan Budgets 
 
Administration: 

Karnowski stated that the $10,000 for a computer upgrade is because Windows XP will no 
longer be supported at some point and they are suggesting everyone move to Windows 7. 
The hardware the city current has is capable of handling 7, but many are 6 years old so it 
may be worth it to upgrade the hardware at the same time. 

 
Finance: 

Jackson stated that the amount set aside in Finance is for the same purpose. 
 
Community Development, & Infrastructure: 

Fuhrman reported that for she has met with one consultant and looking to get some more 
quotes back on an Industrial Expansion Study.  
 
The funds set aside for GIS mapping / Sewer location is going to be utilized by Public 
Works. The sewer lines will be mapped and they would be able to access those maps from 
a laptop in their vehicle.  
 
In regards to Infrastructure, Fuhrman reported that she is working on trying to get some 
grants and funding for the Rivertown Crossing sidewalk and 13th Ave west branch water 
looping. 
 
Walker asked if the $550,000 is the estimate for the water looping. Fuhrman responded that 
it was.  
  
Walker asked for clarification on the line item for the western bypass road. He asked if that 
amount was for the road only, or is land acquisition included. Karnowski added that if that 
the industrial park was expanded, the costs would likely be assessed for that road. Fuhrman 
said Prairie Restorations does seem interested in working with the city on this possible fu-
ture project. 

 
Police: 

Payne reported that the line item for a new squad car is on the CIP list yearly, as they rotate 
in a new one and sell the old every year.   
 
The 800 radios have been in here several years as well. While those have been upgraded, it 
has been suggested to continue setting aside funds to go towards new ones needed in the 
future.   
 



 

 

Princeton City Council Minutes  
October 3, 2013 
Page 3 
 

The copier they are looking at is for the new building. They are looking at a multi-function 
machine.  
 
He stated the funds being requested for the squad computer upgrade is necessary as the 
current computers are not compatible with FBI requirements that have been established for 
2014.   

 
Karnowski stated that staff has been done a great job to find some used items for some very 
good prices for the new building. Jackson agreed and said they have been working very 
hard to get the best prices.  
 
Walker asked if they will need additional help or funds budgeted to make the move. Payne 
responded that while help is appreciated, they do not plan on hiring anyone. He added that 
some of the IT equipment will be taken care of, but all evidence needs to be taken care and 
documented of by the officers themselves 
 
Hallin asked when the move is estimated. Payne responded they are expecting to move 
sometime around November 1st. 

 
Fire and Rescue 

Roxbury stated the GIS mapping and radio repeater have been the CIP for a few years. The 
GIS system is currently being worked on. For the radios, everyone knows there are issues 
with the 800 MHz radios, but there are no solutions to the problem as of yet.  
 
The foam is for the foam truck that the Fire Department recently purchased from the City of 
Roseville. He stated that because the foam is not readily available in the area, he would like 
to keep a lot on hand in case of an emergency. He added that in a case of a fire where it is 
needed, the property owner will be billed for the amount of foam used.  
 
For the computer upgrade, he is going to look for grants and funding for that cover that cost.  
 
There is a lot of equipment and even trucks that will need to be replaced down the line, so 
he said he will continue to look for as many grants and funding options as possible.  
 
He stated in regards to emergency management, there is some siren work on the west side 
that needs to be done. He also suggested looking into adding a provision in future develop-
er’s agreement that will assist in adding and replacing sirens as needed. Jackson comment-
ed that it could be looked at and added to the Subdivision Ordinance when that is reviewed 
and updated.  

 
Public Works / Cemetery / Parks and Recreation / Sanitary Sewer 

Gerold reported that the amounts for both the office area and bucket truck are hold-over’s 
from last year. Sign reflectivity was a previous mandate, but that has been changed. Paint-
ing of shop is for the interior and exterior.  
 
The trailer for hot patch mix is a new item this year. This will allow less material to be used, 
so savings will likely been seen in a few years.  
 
The tractor listed would be to replace the department’s current tractor.  
 



 

 

Princeton City Council Minutes  
October 3, 2013 
Page 4 
 

The street sweeper is also new on the CIP. To get the most out of resale, it should be or 
traded in soon to get a better price on. The skidsteer is to replace aging equipment and it is 
used heavily year round.  

 
Gerold stated the $10,000 is to replace the Splash park controls as the equipment is really 
starting to show its age.  
 
Hallin asked if the used equipment will be traded in. Gerold said the tractor would be a trade 
in if the dealer was interested, as well as the street sweeper. 
 
Gerold reported that the cemetery CIP was reduced to $35,000 to make up for equipment 
he purchased this year  
 
Gerold stated the laptop in the sanitary sewer CIP is for the GIS that Fuhrman spoke about 
earlier. Also, the north life station needs some work, and he is looking at 2 more pumps. Al-
so, the UV bulbs last a while, so he is estimating those will not need to be replaced until 
2017. Walker asked for clarification that the sewer enterprise fund pays for that. Karnowski 
replied that was correct.  

 
 
Liquor Store  

Fuhrman and Jackson reported that the electronic sign on the CIP came from the EDA.  
 
Jackson stated that Campbell had the computer equipment and software update for 2015, 
but he moved it up to next year as they definitely need to be replaced and upgraded. She is 
also considering changing to a different software program.  
 
Karnowski said the wine chiller will be very beneficial. It will chill a bottle in just 30 seconds, 
it frees up a whole cooler and customers will be able to have any bottle chilled before they 
leave.  
 
 
Zimmer asked about the Library. Karnowski and Jackson replied that the window has been 
replaced and the city has received bids on the carpeting. It will either be installed this fall or 
early in the spring.  
 
 
Jackson asked for a consensus from the Council and asked if they had any concerns. The 
Council agreed with what they reviewed on the CIP.  

 
 
ADJOURN 

 
DOBSON MOTIONED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 6:02 PM. WALKER SECONDED THE 
MOTION. THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Shawna Jenkins 

ATTEST: 



 

 

Princeton City Council Minutes  
October 3, 2013 
Page 5 
 
 
       

Paul Whitcomb, Mayor 


